
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Thursday, May 2, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-01 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
(1) Agenda        Pages 2-3 
 
(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
    of the Meeting of April 4, 2013     Pages 4-11   
 
(3) May 4, 2013 Commencement      Pages 12-13 
 
(4) Gifts and Grants       Pages 14-15 
 
(5) Minutes of the April 4, 2013 Student Outcomes Committee  Pages 16-19 
 
(6) Minutes of the April 17, 2013 Business Affairs Committee  Pages 20-79 
 
 

######## 
 

1



 
 

 

 
 
 

    
 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AGENDA 

Thursday, May 2, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
(2) Consent Agenda  
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of April 4, 2013 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) GlaxoSmithKline (GSK)  1600 Callowhill Street Garage 

Lease Assignment 
(d) Architect Selection for the College’s Facilities Master Plan 

 
(3) Tuition and Fee Recommendation for the 2013-14 Year 
 
(4) Acceptance of 2011-12 A-133 Audit Report 
   
(5) Report of the Chair 
 
(6) Foundation Report 
 
(7) Report of the President 
 
(8) New Business 
 
(9) Next Meeting:   Thursday, June 6, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 
      Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
Future Committee Meetings: 
 

Student Outcomes:  Thursday, May 2, 2013 
    1:30 p.m. – M2-34     

        
 
Business Affairs:  Wednesday, May 22, 2013 
    9:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1    

 
 Audit Committee:  Wednesday, June 26, 2013 
     12:00 noon – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1     

2



 
 
Upcoming Events 
 

 Distinguished Leadership Awards   Thursday, May 2, 2013 
   Breakfast:  West Regional Center  8:00 a.m. – 4725 Chestnut Street 
 
 Nurses Pinning Ceremony   Friday, May 3, 2013   
       10:00 a.m. – Gymnasium 

 
 Academic Awards & Reception  Friday, May 3, 2013   
         6:00 p.m. – Large Auditorium, BG-10 
 
 Commencement    Saturday, May 4, 2013   
       10:00 a.m. – Liacouras Center 
       Owl Room 
 
 Classified/Confidential Luncheon  Wednesday, May 8, 2013   
       12:00 noon – Great Hall, S2-19 
 
 Foundation Annual Golf Tournament  Monday, July 29, 2013 - 11:30 a.m.    
       Commonwealth National Golf Club 
        250 Babylon Road, Horsham PA 19044 

  
 PA Commission for Community   September 26-27, 2013 
     Colleges All-Trustees Assembly  Location TBD 
 
 44th Annual ACCT Leadership Congress October 2-5, 2013   
       Seattle, WA   
 
 
 

                                                          ################## 
 

3



 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Thursday, April 4, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mr. Bergheiser, presiding; Ms. Biemiller, Mr. Edwards, Ms. Hernández Vélez, 

Ms. Horstmann, Mr. Lassiter, Mayor Nutter, Ms. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, 
Ms. Sparandara, Ms. Tsai, Ms. Vieira, Mr. White, Dr. Curtis, Ms. Bauer, Ms. 
Brown-Sow, Mr. Brown, Ms. DiGregorio, Ms. Garfinkle-Weitz, Dr. Gay, Dr. 
Hawk, Dr. Hirsch, and Ms. Ray 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of collective bargaining and 
personnel matters. 
 
(2) Consent Agenda  
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions  
 of the Meeting of February 7, 2013 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Promotions 
(d) Academic Audit:  Theater Program 
(e) Resolution of Board Support for 2013-14 State Capital Project Applications 

 
After discussion, Mr. Lassiter moved, with Ms. Rényi seconding, that the Board approve 

the Consent Agenda.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(3) Report of the Chair 
 
(3a) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser stated that he was appointing a Nominating Committee for Board 
Officers.  Mr. Bergheiser reviewed the procedures for the annual Board officers’ election.  He 
stated that nominations must be made at the June meeting and no nominations will be accepted 
after the close of the June meeting.  Should there be multiple candidates for an office, the 
Nominating Committee will interview candidates and make recommendation for Board officers.  
Mr. Bergheiser stated that where there are multiple candidates for an office, the Nominating 
Committee will be charged with requesting all candidates to make presentations to the full Board 
at the September Board meeting.  Voting will take place by secret ballot. 
 

Mr. Bergheiser stated that Ms. Hernández Vélez has agreed to chair the Committee.  He 
asked members of the Board who are interested in serving on the Committee to notify Ms. 

4



Hernández Vélez.  After discussion, Mr. Lassiter and Ms. Horstmann indicated their willingness 
to serve on the Nominating Committee for Board Officers. 
 
(3b) Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges 
 Annual Meeting/Lobby Day 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser reported that the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges 
Annual Meeting/Lobby Day is scheduled for April 8-9, 2013, at the Hilton Harrisburg.  He asked 
whether any members of the Board were available to attend the meeting.  After discussion, it was 
noted that no members of the Board were available to attend. 
 
(3c) Budget Hearing 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser reported that the College’s Budget hearing before City Council is 
scheduled for Monday, April 15, 2013 at 10:00 a.m., in City Council Chambers, Room 400. 
 
(3d) Year-End Events 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser called attention to the list of important year-end events where Board 
representation was needed.  After discussion, the following Board members agreed to represent 
the Board at the following events: 
 
Distinguished Leadership Awards Breakfasts: 
 

Northeast Regional Center, Tuesday, April 30, 2013, 8:00 a.m.  Mr. Edwards will 
represent the Board; 
 
Northwest Regional Center, Wednesday, May 1, 2013, 8:00 a.m.  Ms. Biemiller will 
represent the Board; 
 
West Regional Center, Thursday, May 2, 2013, 8:00 a.m.  Representative Roebuck will 
represent the Board; 
 
College Honors Tea, Wednesday, May 1, 2013, 4:00 p.m.  Ms. Sparandara will represent 
the Board; 
 
Nurses Pinning Ceremony, Friday, May 3, 2013, 10:00 a.m.  Ms. Horstmann will 
represent the Board; 
 
Academic Awards and Reception, Friday, May 3, 2013, 6:00 p.m.  Mr. Lassiter will 
represent the Board; 
 
Classified/Confidential Luncheon, Wednesday, May 8, 2013, 12:00 noon.  Ms. 
Hernández Vélez will represent the Board; and 
 
Retirees Reception, Thursday, May 23, 2013.  Ms. Vieira will represent the Board. 

5



 
 Mr. Bergheiser reported that Commencement is scheduled for Saturday, May 4, 2013 at 
10:00 a.m. at the Temple Liacouras Center.  The following Board members indicated their 
attendance:  Ms. Biemiller, Mr. Bergheiser, Mr. Edwards, Ms. Horstmann, Mr. Lassiter, Mayor 
Nutter, Ms. Rényi, Ms. Sparandara, Ms. Tsai, Ms. Vieira, and Mr. White. 
 
(4) Foundation Report 
 
 Ms. Ray reported that the Foundation’s annual appeal, the Pride Fund, which was 
launched in November 2012, has received nearly $29,000.  She stated that the Pride Fund 
supports a wide variety of project and programs that are critical to the student learning 
experience at the College. 
 
 Ms. Ray reported that from March 18-March 21, Tuition Gap activities were conducted.  
She stated that the approximately 7 percent of the student body showed their pride in the College 
by making a donation and setting a new student-giving record.  Ms. Ray stated that in just four 
days, 1,400 people contributed nearly $4,000.   
 
 Mr. Ray reported that on May 9, 2013, the Foundation will host its annual Foundation’s 
Scholars Reception from 5:30 – 7:30 p.m.  This annual event recognizes those who have 
supported student scholarships, and the students who have benefited from their generosity.  Ms. 
Ray encouraged members of the Board to attend the event. 
 
 Ms. Ray reported that the Foundation’s 16th Annual Golf Classic is scheduled for July 29, 
2013 at Commonwealth National Golf Club in Horsham.  Foundation Board Director George 
Burrell is once again taking the lead in promoting this event and increasing revenue.   
 
 Ms. Ray reported that plans for the Foundation’s Annual Pathways Awards Celebration 
are underway.  The planning committee, which will be chaired by Foundation Director Lorina 
Marshall-Blake, will meet in April to nominate honorees.  The event will be held on November 
7, 2013. 
 
 Ms. Ray informed the Board of noteworthy gifts and grants received by the College. 
 
(5) Report of the President 
 
(5a) Association of Community College Trustees/ 
 American Association of Community Colleges 
 National Legislative Summit 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he, Mr. Bergheiser, and Ms. Brown-Sow attended the 
ACCT/AACC Legislative Summit on February 12-14, 2013 in Washington, DC.  The Summit is 
an opportunity to advocate at the federal level on behalf of community colleges.  Dr. Curtis 
stated that the group met with Congressman Chaka Fattah, Congresswoman Allison Schwartz, 
Mr. Kyle Wherrity, Education Aide for Congressman Robert Brady, and Senators Robert Casey 
and Pat Toomey. 

6



(5b) Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges 
 Legislative Breakfast 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he had attended the Pennsylvania Commission for Community 
Colleges Legislative Breakfast on March 12, 2013.  Representative Roebuck, who is co-chairing 
the Community College House Caucus, was in attendance. Also in attendance were 
Representatives Brendan Boyle, Kevin Boyle, Jordan Harris, Stephen Kinsey, and Ed Neilson. 
 
(5c) Meetings with Legislators 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he has been meeting with state legislators to advocate on behalf 
of the College.  To date, he has met with Representatives James Clay, Stephen Kinsey, Jordan 
Harris, John Sabatina, and Brian Sims. 
 
(5d) Meetings with City Council 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he has been meeting with members of City Council to advocate 
on behalf of the College.  To date, he has met with Councilmen Dennis O’Brien, Mark Squilla, 
Bobby Henon, Curtis Jones, and Councilwomen Jannie Blackwell and Blondell Reynolds 
Brown. 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he had testified in City Council on behalf of the Global 
Opportunities and the Creative/Innovative Economy Committee hearing on February 25, 2013.  
The testimony focused on workforce development in the 21st century.  Councilman David Oh 
chaired the Committee. 
 
(5e) Off-Campus Events 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he had participated in the following off-campus events: 
 

• The Philadelphia Chinatown Development Corporation Chinese New Year 
Celebration on February 15, 2013; 

 
• The Annual Mayoral Luncheon on February 6, 2013; 

 
• The Multi-University Center Ribbon Cutting Ceremony on March 18, 2013; 

 
• The reception for City Council on March 21, 2013; and 

 
• The ACHIEVEability Gala on March 23, 2013 where the College was honored 

with the Education Award. 
 
(5f) On-Campus Events 
 
 Dr. Curtis reported that he had participated in the following on-campus events: 
 

7



• The Annual Lindback Lecture on March 26. 2013.  Dr. Stewart Avart, Professor 
of Biology, the 2012 winner of the Lindback Distinguished Teaching Award, 
lectured on “Biotechnology: The Past, The Present and Implications for the 
Future.”  Dr. Curtis stated that the lecture was well attended by faculty, staff and 
students; and 

 
• The Phi Theta Kappa Induction on April 3, 2013.  About 150 students were 

inducted in the honor society.   
 
(6) New Business 
 
 There was no new business discussed at the meeting. 
 
(7) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, May 2, 2013, at 
3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
 

8



COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Thursday, April 4, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 
MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
Present: Mr. Bergheiser, presiding; Ms. Biemiller, Mr. Edwards, Ms. Hernández Vélez, 

Ms. Horstmann, Mr. Lassiter, Mayor Nutter, Ms. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, 
Ms. Sparandara, Ms. Tsai, Ms. Vieira, Mr. White, Dr. Curtis, Ms. Bauer, Ms. 
Brown-Sow, Mr. Brown, Ms. DiGregorio, Ms. Garfinkle-Weitz, Dr. Gay, Dr. 
Hawk, Dr. Hirsch, and Ms. Ray 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of collective bargaining and 
personnel matters. 
 
(2) Consent Agenda  
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions  
 of the Meeting of February 7, 2013 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Promotions 
(d) Academic Audit:  Theater Program 
(e) Resolution of Board Support for 2013-14 State Capital Project Applications 

 
The Board approved the Consent Agenda.   

 
(3) Report of the Chair 
 
(3a) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser appointed a Nominating Committee for Board Officers.  Ms. Hernández 
Vélez agreed to serve as chair.  Mr. Lassiter and Ms. Horstmann will serve on the Committee. 
 
(3b) Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges 
 Annual Meeting/Lobby Day 
 
 The Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges Annual Meeting/Lobby Day is 
scheduled for April 8-9, 2013, at the Hilton Harrisburg.   
 
(3c) Budget Hearing 
 
 The College’s Budget hearing before City Council is scheduled for Monday, April 15, 
2013 at 10:00 a.m., in City Council Chambers, Room 400. 
 
 

9



(3d) Year-End Events 
 
 Mr. Bergheiser called attention to a list of important year-end events where Board 
representation was needed.   

 
 Commencement is scheduled for Saturday, May 4, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. at the Temple 
Liacouras Center.   
 
(4) Foundation Report 
 
 The Foundation’s annual appeal, the Pride Fund, which was launched in November 2012, 
has received nearly $29,000.   
 
 Ms. Ray reported that from March 18-March 21, Tuition Gap activities were conducted.  
In just four days, 1,400 people contributed nearly $4,000.   
 
 On May 9, 2013, the Foundation will host its annual Foundations Scholars Reception 
from 5:30 – 7:30 p.m.   
 
 The Foundation’s 16th Annual Golf Classic is scheduled for July 29, 2013 at 
Commonwealth National Golf Club in Horsham. 
 
 The Foundation’s Annual Pathways Awards Celebration will be held on November 7, 
2013. 
 
 (5) Report of the President 
 
(5a) Association of Community College Trustees/ 
 American Association of Community Colleges 
 National Legislative Summit 
 
 Dr. Curtis. Mr. Bergheiser, and Ms. Brown-Sow attended the ACCT/AACC Legislative 
Summit on February 12-14, 2013 in Washington, DC.   
 
(5b) Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges 
 Legislative Breakfast 
 
 Dr. Curtis attended the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges Legislative 
Breakfast on March 12, 2013. 
 
 
(5c) Meetings with Legislators 
 
 Dr. Curtis met with Representatives James Clay, Stephen Kinsey, Jordan Harris, John 
Sabatina, and Brian Sims to advocate on behalf of the College. 
 

10



(5d) Meetings with City Council 
 
 Dr. Curtis met with Councilmen Dennis O’Brien, Mark Squilla, David Henon, Curtis 
Jones, and Councilwomen Jannie Blackwell and Blondell Reynolds Brown to advocate on behalf 
of the College. 
 
 Dr. Curtis testified in City Council on behalf of the Global Opportunities and the 
Creative/Innovative Economy Committee hearing on February 25, 2013.   
 
(5e) Off-Campus Events 
 
 Dr. Curtis participated in the following off-campus events: 
 

• The Philadelphia Chinatown Development Corporation Chinese New Year 
Celebration on February 15, 2013; 

 
• The Annual Mayoral Luncheon on February 6, 2013; 

 
• The Multi-University Center Ribbon Cutting Ceremony on March 18, 2013; 

 
• The reception for City Council on March 21, 2013; and 

 
• The ACHIEVEability Gala on March 23, 2013 where the College was honored 

with the Education Award. 
 
(5f) On-Campus Events 
 
 Dr. Curtis participated in the following on-campus events: 
 

• The Annual Lindback Lecture on March 26. 2013; and 
 

• The Phi Theta Kappa Induction on April 3, 2013.  
 
(6) New Business 
 
 There was no new business discussed at the meeting. 
 
(7) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, May 2, 2013, at 
3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
 

11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Josie DiGregorio 
 
DATE: April 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 2013 Commencement 
 
 
 
 
 
The College’s Commencement ceremony is scheduled for Saturday, May 4, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. 
at Temple University’s Liacouras Center located at 1776 North Broad Street (Broad Street & 
Montgomery Avenue).  A continental breakfast will be available at 9:00 a.m. in the Owl Room 
(please note room change from previous e-mail to you from our office).   Robing will take place 
in the Owl Room.  Please plan to arrive at the Liacouras Center no later than 9:15 a.m.  
Complimentary parking will be provided for you at the Parking Garage at the Liacouras Center.  
To enter the garage, you must use the entrance on Sydenham Street between Montgomery 
Avenue and Cecil B. Moore Avenue.  A representative from the College’s Campus Security will 
be present to direct you to your reserved parking spot.  The security guard will have a list of 
names of all those approved for reserved parking. 
 
Once parked, you should enter the Liacouras Center through the entrance on Cecil B. Moore 
Avenue located on the corner of Cecil B. Moore Avenue and 15th Street.  Members from the 
College’s staff, John Moore, Bridget Scott, and Carol Whitney, will be present at the door to 
escort you to the Owl Room located on the lower level of the Liacouras Center.  The Owl Room 
is where the President’s Platform Party will meet for robing. Also, at that time, directions will be 
provided regarding the order of procession and platform party seating arrangements.   
 
For your convenience, a map of the parking garage and The Liacouras Center is provided. 
 
 
 
 
 

12



N

EW

S

M i CM i C

Ed
be

rg
 O

ls
on

 
H

al
l; 

C
ho

do
ff

 
Fo

ot
ba

ll 
Fi

el
d 

Pr
ac

tic
e

Fa
ci

lit
y

Diamond Street
W

hi
te

 H
al

l
i d S

N
ew

m
an

 C
en

te
r

Main CampusMain Campus

Area
5

El
ve

rs
on

Sc
ho

ol

Tyler 
School                      

of                      
Art

Norris Street
tet A

Diamond Street

Presser
Hall

ng

Jo
hn

so
n 

&
 

H
ar

dw
ic

k
H

al
l

T i l

Peabody
Hall

et

Norris Street

Diamond Street

etal
l

etATHLETIC

Area
10

M
ar

vi
ne

 S
tre

et

A
nn

en
be

rg
 

H
al

l

Randall & 
Tomlinson
Theaters N

or
iis

 H
om

esArea
# 6

HILLEL
FOUNDATION

16
th

 S
tre

et

Area   1

Berks Mall

13
th

 S
tre

et

15
th

 S
tre

e Area
7

Gladfelter Hall

Anderson Hall
Paley Library

B
eu

ry
 H

al
l

B
io

lo
gy

  B
ui

ld
in

g

En
gi

ne
er

in
B

ui
ld

in
g

McGonigle Hall

Triangle
Apartments 

Student
Pavilion

M
itt

en
H

al
l 11

th
 S

tre
e

Fo
x 

Sc
ho

ol
O

f B
us

in
es

s

Temple
Train

StationB
ro

ad
 S

tre
et

12
th

 S
tre

et

10
th

 S
tre

e

19
40

 H
a

9t
h 

St
re

e

Barrack
Hall

8t
h 

St
re

et

ATHLETIC

FIELD

TR
A

C
K

B
ar

to
n 

H
al

l

rd
on

tm
en

ts

ili
tie

s
ag

em
en

t

nt
er

Sa
fe

ty

B
el

l T
ow

er

e 
D

irt
 L

ot
”

N
or

ris
 H

om
es

Temple 
Performing
Arts Center

Li
ac

ou
ra

s 
W

al
k

C
on

w
el

l
In

n
D

ia
m

on
d

D
ol

la
rs

Future

G

Montgomery Avenue

Bell
GaragePearson Hall

Conwell/
Carnell/

Wachman
Halls

0 0

Montgomery Avenue

Hall

Student
Center

ei
ss

H
al

l

R
itt

er
 H

al
l

BEASLEY
LAWThe Parking 

Garage at the     
Liacouras    

Center

The
Liacouras

Center

Area  2

T

ROCK

K
ar

A
pa

rt

Fa
c

M
an

a

yd
en

ha
m

 A
pt

s. 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

V
ill

ag
e

Te
ch

 C
e n

C
am

pu
s S

Pa
rk

in
g

Se
rv

ic
es

O
ff

ic
e

“T
h e

Wannamaker/
Dunbar
Schools

Recreation
Center /
Fields

18
00

 B
lo

ck
 L Garage

Pa
rk

Temple
Towers

17
0

15
th

 S
tre

et

Cecil B. Moore Avenue

Sy
de

nh
am

 S
t.

W
e HR

B
ro

ad
 S

tre
et

11
th

 S
tre

et

10
th

 S
tre

et

12
th

 S
tre

et

Temple Towers
Housing

Cecil B. Moore Avenue

M
al

l

16
th

 S
tre

et

13
th

 S
tre

et

9t
h 

St
re

et

8t
h 

St
re

et

Area 9HALLCommunity Education 
Center

Th
e 

Ed
ge

 
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

S y

U

O
xf

or
d 

V
ill

ag
e

A
ve

nu
e 

N
or

th

Area
8

Oxford Street

Jefferson Street

RITE AID

PROGRESS PLAZA

GATE WAY
ZAVELLES

Oxford Street

Jefferson Street

ELMIRA
JEFFRIES

O
xf

or
d 

V
ill

ag
e

Master StreetMaster Street

Enter the Liacouras Center on Cecil B. 
Moore Avenue (near the intersection 
of 15th Street and Cecil B. Moore Ave). 

*see     symbol on building to left

Enter 
parking 
garage on 
Sydenham 
Street

13



14



15



 
 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 MINUTES 

Thursday, April 4, 2013 
1:30 p.m. – Room M2-34 

 
 
Present: Dr. Stephen Curtis, Mr. Mark Edwards, Dr. Judith Gay, Dr. Samuel 

Hirsch, Ms. Mary Horstmann, Mr. Chad Lassiter, Dr. Judith Rényi,  
Dr. James Roebuck 

 
 
 (1) Executive Session 
 

There was no Executive Session.  
 

(2) Public Session 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of March 14, 2013 (Action Item)  
 

 The minutes were accepted. 
  

b) Developmental Math Department Proposal (Action Item) 
 

The members of the Committee discussed the proposed developmental 
mathematics department.  Concerns included: labeling a department 
“developmental”; whether creating a new department would impact student 
outcomes in the short term; whether the proposal is transformative enough; and 
faculty perceptions.  The Committee asked for an updated proposal that deals 
with structural issues and an alternative proposal that could have a more 
immediate impact. No action was taken.  

 
c) Student Outcomes Dashboard (Discussion Item) 

 
 This agenda item was deferred until the next meeting.  

 
 
Next Meeting:   
 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is 
scheduled for Thursday, May 2, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. in conference room  
M2-34.   

 
Attachments: 
 
 Minutes of March 14, 2013 

16



 

 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES 

Thursday, March 14, 2013 

1:30 p.m. – M2-34 

 

Presiding: Ms. Stacy Holland 

Present:   Dr. Stephen Curtis, Ms. Mary Horstmann, Mr. Chad Dion Lassiter, Dr. Judith 
Gay, Dr. Judith Rényi, Dr. James Roebuck (by phone), Ms. Beatriz F. Vieira 

Guests:   Dr. Sharon Thompson, Mr. John Moore, Dr. Peggy Mecham, Mr. Joel 
Tannenbaum, Mr. Brenton Webber 

 

(1)   Executive Session  

 There was a discussion of candidates for promotion.  The Committee 
recommendation will be made at the April 4, 2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

 Dr. Curtis made a recommendation for an honorary degree to the Committee.  The 
Committee supported the recommendation and will make a recommendation to the Board 
of Trustees.  The Committee asked that there be an electronic vote by the Board of 
Trustees to expedite the process. 

(2)  Public Session 

 (a)  Approval of Minutes of February 7, 2013 

  The minutes were accepted.  

(b)  Program Audit: Theater Program (Action Item) 

 Mr. Moore presented highlights of the Theater Program audit.  He stated that the 
program has outcomes comparable to the College but that the Vice President for 
Academic Affairs and Deans have agreed that programs need to exceed the College 
average in order to meet College targets.  As a consequence, one recommendation is for 
an enrollment management plan.  In response to a question from the Committee, Dr. 
Mecham described the efforts the program plans to make to secure internship or other 
professional opportunities for students.   Finally, Dr. Mecham mentioned an innovative 
theater project that is part of the College’s re-entry program efforts.  The Committee 
requested information about the upcoming performance. 

17



 

 

Motion:  The Student Outcomes Committee recommends that the Board of Trustees 
accept the Theater Program Audit and recertify the program for five years. 

(c)  Developmental Math 

 Mr. Tannenbaum stated that he is a member of the Academic Affairs Curriculum 
Sub-Committee but was not speaking on behalf of the Committee.  He stated that the 
Committee voted 6 to 4, with 2 abstentions, not to support the recommendation to create 
a developmental math department.  He stated that he believed the majority voted “no” for 
five reasons: 

1. There is no compelling reason for the change.  The change will not increase 
outcomes and may lower standards. 

2. Faculty hired may unintentionally raise scores in order to meet standards. 
3. It may create a “bureaucratic boondoggle” and it will be hard to reintegrate 

separate departments later as happened at Bucks County Community College. 
4. Most department reforms have not been given enough years to work.  Scores 

went down after the comprehensive exam was given but now are going back 
up. 

5. There is a concern about first-time pass rates for 2010 and 2011.  The pass 
rate for Math 118 is 75%. 

He also stated that he is not denying that there is a need for improvement but there should 
not be radical reform. 

 Ms. Holland asked what happens to the person who cannot wait for reform?  Mr. 
Webber stated that math is a small part of the problem.  Students who do not persist do 
not necessarily fail to persist because of math.  He stated that the department has been 
doing things but those things just have not “hit the ground yet.” 

Ms. Horstmann asked what ideas the department has.  Mr. Webber stated that they 
are interested in accurate placement.  Students are usually placed too high with the 
computerized placement test.  Dr. Gay asked if she had kept the faculty from addressing 
issues related to the placement test.  Mr. Webber agreed that she had not. 

Mr. Lassiter asked whether anything is being done about math phobia.  Mr. 
Webber said he understands that some students have that problem. 

Ms. Holland thanked the faculty for their presentation and told them that the 
Committee will discuss the topic at the April meeting. 

Mr. Webber and Mr. Tannenbaum left a petition that they meant to give to the 
Committee.  Dr. Gay agreed to send it to the Committee members.  Dr. Gay provided 
excerpts of College reports for the Committee members.  She agreed to have the handouts 
sent to Dr. Roebuck. 

  The Student Outcomes Committee will discuss the topic at the April Meeting. 

 

18



 

 

The meeting was adjourned. 

(3)       Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is scheduled for 
Thursday, April 4, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. in conference room M2-34.   

 

Attachments: 
 
Summary of Audit Actions - Theater Program Audit 
Minutes of February 7, 2013 
Program Audit: Theater Program  
Response to the Proposal to Form a New Developmental Mathematics Department 
Developmental Mathematics Petition 
AtD Pass Rates and Withdraw Rates - IR Report #233 
First Term Completion Rates - Math Department Report 
Completion Rates in Entry Level Math - from IR in-Brief #194 

       Summary of Placement - First-time Recent High School Graduates - from IR Report #218  

 

 

 

 

 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79


	tableofcontentsMay
	agenda 5.2.13
	4.4.13Boardproceedings
	4.4.13minutes
	2013commencement
	Map of Parking Garage_CCP
	May 2013 Gifts and Grants Report_
	April 4, 2013 Student Outcomes Committee Minutes
	SOC MINUTES.April 4,2013
	Draft-SOC Minutes March 14 2013

	April 17, 2013 Business Affairs Committee



